# Enhance NWSRFS Deterministic Verification Tools for AWIPS OB8.2 User Interface Change Document OSIP 06-023

Hank Herr

# Table of Contents

1.0	Overview	
2.0	Verification Group Manager	
3.0	Verification Location Manager	
4.0	IVP Data Display	6
4.1	IVP Data Display: Scatter Plot View	6
4.2	IVP Data Display: Time Series View	7
5.0	Verification Plot Definition Manager	
6.0	IVP Statistic Chooser Manager	
7.0	IVP Statistic Display	
8.0	IVP Batch File Creation Wizard	
9.0	Vfyruninfo Editor	
10.0	IVP Batch Language	
11.0	IVP Batch Builder	

# 1.0 Overview

This document provides descriptions of how the user interface will change in order to satisfy the requirements outlined for AWIPS OB8.2 delivery of the RFC verification software suite. For the OB7.2 software, the user interface is described in the User's Manuals, found at

http://www.nws.noaa.gov/oh/hrl/verification/verification doc ob7.php

Each section that follows describes changes required to either a window of the Interactive Verification Program or the batch language used in the IVP Batch Program. Where possible, snapshots of a new prototype display will be provided.

#### 2.0 Verification Group Manager

The Verification Group Manager must change to allow the user to input the following information:

- Issuance time-of-day interval and subinterval
- Active/in-active (or both) flag

The issuance time-of-day interval will be specified in a manner analogous to how the lead time intervals are specified. However, the spinner will only allow values from 0 to 24, and the choice box will only include NONE or hours (hour and hr, as well). The active/in-active flag, which restricts which locations are included in the verification group, will be set via radio buttons.

✓////////////////////////////////////	erification Group Manager, IVP v. ob7.2 05/19/06
Select Analy	sis Interval
Start Time:	Fixed Rel
End Time:	Fixed Rel
Time Step:	0 <sup>^</sup> → NONE ▼
Select Lead	Time
Start: 0	NONE  End:  NONE  NONE  Step:  NONE  NONE  NONE  NONE
Select Paran	neters
Fost Type So	urces: ALL Edit List
Physical Elen	nents: ALL Edit List
River Respon	SE: O SLOW O MEDIUM O FAST () ALL
Persistence:	O OFF ON
Edit Loca	tions Load From Batch Create Display

**Figure 1a:** Screenshot of Verification Group Managers for OB7.2.

Verification Group Manager, IVP v. ob8.2 10/04/06 Data Source 💷 💌
Select Analysis Interval
Start Time:
End Time: Fixed Rel
Time Step: 0
Select Lead Time
Start: $0 \xrightarrow{+}{\vee}$ NONE $\checkmark$ End: $0 \xrightarrow{-}{\vee}$ NONE $\checkmark$ Step: $1 \xrightarrow{+}{\vee}$ NONE $\checkmark$
Select Issuance Time-of-day
Start: $\bigcirc^{\wedge}_{\Psi}$ NONE $\checkmark$ End: $\bigcirc^{\wedge}_{\Psi}$ NONE $\checkmark$ Step: $1^{\wedge}_{\Psi}$ NONE $\checkmark$
Select Parameters
Fcst Type Sources:
River Response: O SLOW O MEDIUM O FAST () ALL
Active/Inactive Only:      ACTIVE      INACTIVE      BOTH
Edit Locations Load From Batch Create Display

**Figure 1b:** Prototype screenshot of Verification Group Manager for OB8.2.

Also, the persistence and physical element parts of the window will be removed. The user will still be able to specify if persistence forecasts are to be used by including the type source 'FR' in the Forecast Type Sources text field, or setting it to 'ALL'. As for physical elements, the user can specify the physical elements by choosing appropriate locations via the Verification Location Manager.

Screenshots of the OB7.2 Verification Group Manager and a prototype OB8.2 Verification Group Manager are provided in Figures 1a and 1b.

# 3.0 Verification Location Manager

The Verification Location Manager will undergo significant changes in order to allow for additional data types. The changes are as follows:

- New columns will be created to display the duration, extremum, forecast type source, active state, and the observation type (raw or processed) for a location.
- Existing columns displaying the critical stages will be renamed to reflect that those columns will display critical flow values for flow data.
- The one table will be split into two tables: the upper table displays locations that can be chosen for display and the lower table will display locations currently chosen for display. The background colors for the table cells will remain the same: white/gray for unchosen locations, pink/red for chosen locations.
- A location filter panel will be added to the top that allows for users to filter out rows from the upper table that do not satisfy specified constraints, including physical element, duration, extremum, forecast type source, and whether the location has missing or non-missing critical stage/flow values.

- A **Reset Filter** button will be added that will reset the filter to include everything.
- Buttons will be rearranged, so that each table has its own buttons to select or deselect all locations. Other buttons will be placed between the two tables, meaning that they affect both tables. A new button, called **Edit Obs Type** will be added between the two tables. It will spawn a small GUI that contains two radio buttons labeled "RAW" and "PROCESSED", as well as **Okay** and **Cancel** buttons. The **Show** button will be removed; its functionality will be added to the IVP Data Display.

Screenshots of the OB7.2 Verification Location Manager and a prototype OB8.2 Verification Location Manager are provided in Figure 2.

LKW2 RP1	HG	FAST	0000	1						_
LRP1			-999.0			-999.0	-999.0	MIN,6,8,MAX	MIN,MAX	1
	HG	FAST	-999.0					MIN,6,8,MAX	MIN,MAX	
INP1	HG	MEDIUM	-999.0					MIN,6,8,MAX	MIN,MAX	
TXV2	HG	MEDIUM	0.0	21.0	25.0	28.0	35.3	MIN,6,8,MAX	MIN,MAX	
LNN6	HG	SLOW	0.0	1.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	MIN,6,8,MAX	MIN,MAX	
GLN4	HG	MEDIUM	0.0					MIN,6,8,MAX	MIN,MAX	
ILW2	HG	MEDIUM	-999.0	-999.0	-999.0	-999.0	-999.0	MIN,MAX	MIN,MAX	٦

0							Verifica	ation Loca	ation Mar	ager, IVI	• v. ob8.	2 10/04/06		
filte	r													
PE	ALL	Se	lect	] 1	Dur:	ALL [	Select	Ext:	ALL	Sel	ect	TS: ALL Select	Crit Vals: Any	Select
Avai	lable Locat	ions										Reset Filter	Select All Selec	t None
act	location	pe	dur	ext	ts	response	as/f	fs/f	modfs/f	majfs/f	rs/f	Forecast Category	Observed Category	obs typi
γ	ABR	TA	1	N	FB	MEDIUM	-	-	-	-	1. 1.	MIN,MAX	MIN,MAX	RAW
Y	ABR	TA	1	N	FR	MEDIUM	-	-	-	-	÷.,	MIN,MAX	MIN,MAX	RAW
γ	ABR	TA	1	N	FZ	MEDIUM	-	-	-	-	÷.	MIN,MAX	MIN,MAX	RAW
γ	ABR	TA	1	X	FB	MEDIUM	-	-	-	-	-	MIN,MAX	MIN,MAX	RAW
γ	ABR	TA	1	x	FR	MEDIUM	-	-	-	-	÷	MIN,MAX	MIN,MAX	RAW
γ	ABR	TA	1	X	FZ	MEDIUM	-	-	-		i de la compañía de l	MIN,MAX	MIN,MAX	RAW
γ	ACMP1	HP	1	Z	FF	MEDIUM	-999.0	-999.0	-999.0	-999.0	-999.0	MIN,MAX	MIN,MAX	RAW
γ	ACMP1	HP	1	Z	FR	MEDIUM	-999.0	-999.0	-999.0	-999.0	0.0	MIN,MAX	MIN,MAX	RAW
Y	ALNP1	HG	1	Z	FE	MEDIUM	0.0	8.0	10.0	12.0	11.6	MIN,MAX	MIN,MAX	RAW
γ	ALNP1	HG	1	Z	FF	MEDIUM	0.0	8.0	10.0	12.0	11.6	MIN,MAX	MIN,MAX	RAW
γ	ALNP1	HG	1	Z	FR	MEDIUM	0.0	8.0	10.0	12.0	0.0	MIN,MAX	MIN,MAX	RAW
γ	AROC2	TA	1	N	FB	MEDIUM	-	-	-	-	÷.	MIN.MAX	MIN,MAX	RAW
γ	AROC2	TA	1	N	FR	MEDIUM	-	-	-	-		MIN,MAX	MIN,MAX	RAW
4		-	-		1							10000000000000000000000000000000000000	1	
Loca	Choose ▼ tions Chose	n for	A Dis	Unch play	oose		🛦 🛦 Unch	oose All		Edi	t Obs T	ype Edit Fost Ca	tegory Edit Obs C Select All Selec	ategory st None
act	location	pe	dur	ext	ts	response	as/f	fs/f	modfs/f	majfs/f	rs/f	Forecast Category	Observed Category	obs type
Y	CLKW2	HG	1	Z	FE	FAST	-999.0					MIN,6,8,MAX	MIN,MAX	RAW
	CLKW2	HG	1	Z	FF	FAST	-999.0					MIN,6,8,MAX	MIN,MAX	RAW
Y			10				0000					MAINIC ON MANY	A ATA I BA ANY	and the second se
Y Y	ELRP1	HG	1	Z	FE	FAST	-333.0					WIIN, D, 8, WIAX	MIN,MAX	RAW
Y Y Y	ELRP1 ELRP1	HG HG	1	Z Z	FE FF	FAST FAST	-999.0					MIN,6,8,MAX	MIN,MAX MIN,MAX	RAW RAW
Y Y Y Y	ELRP1 ELRP1 JHNP1	HG HG HG		Z Z Z	FE FF FE	FAST FAST MEDIUM	-999.0 -999.0 -999.0					MIN,6,8,MAX MIN,6,8,MAX MIN,6,8,MAX	MIN,MAX MIN,MAX MIN,MAX	RAW RAW RAW
Y Y Y Y Y	ELRP1 ELRP1 JHNP1 JHNP1	HG HG HG HG		Z Z Z Z	FE FF FE FF	FAST FAST MEDIUM MEDIUM	- 999.0 - 999.0 - 999.0 - 999.0					MIN, 6, 8, MAX MIN, 6, 8, MAX MIN, 6, 8, MAX MIN, 6, 8, MAX	MIN,MAX MIN,MAX MIN,MAX MIN,MAX	RAW RAW RAW RAW

**Figure 2:** Screenshots of the Verification Location Manager for OB7.2 (top) and the prototype for OB8.2 (bottom).

# 4.0 IVP Data Display

The IVP Data Display will change partly due to the change in chart rendering tool from JClass DesktopViews to ChartDirector. This will result in changes to the fonts, label positions, plot area position, and other aspects of the chart's appearance. Also the following general changes will be made:

- The NOAA logo in the upper left corner and the NWS logo in the upper right corner of the displayed chart will be removed. Instead, a NOAA water mark will be placed in the background of every chart.
- A new menu item called "Create a New Display" will be created allowing the user to open up a new Verification Group Manager window and create a new IVP Data Display.
- A new menu item called "View Batch Tokens" will be created allowing the user to view the tokens used in order to acquire the data displayed. As stated in the design document, the IVP GUI uses tokens in order to access the IVP Batch Program software components to acquire forecast-observed pairs and compute verification statistics.

#### 4.1 IVP Data Display: Scatter Plot View

A Location List Panel will be added to the scatter plot view to allow for a user to focus on data and categories for a specific location. When a location is selected, it will be displayed exactly as if the **Show** button of the Verification Location Manager was click in the AWIPS OB7.2 version of IVP. Locations with data to view will have a green background within the list.



Figure 3a: Screenshot of the IVP Data Display for OB7.2.



**Figure 3b:** Prototype screenshot of the scatter plot view for the IVP Data Display for OB8.2.

Screenshots of the OB7.2 IVP Data Display Scatter Plot View and a prototype OB8.2 IVP Data Display Scatter Plot View are provided in Figures 3a and 3b.

#### 4.2 IVP Data Display: Time Series View

A new time series view will be added to the IVP Data Display, displaying forecast time series by location and forecast basis time. Also, users will be able to add observation time series to the display based on the observation type source. Finally, users will be able to emphasize any forecast time series by clicking on the legend entry for that time series. When emphasized, the forecast time series will be highlighted and the observations paired with each forecast time series will be shown.

A screenshot of the prototype OB8.2 IVP Data Display time series view is provided in Figure 3c.

Hydrologic Deterministic Verification –User Interface Change Document



**Figure 3c:** Prototype screenshot of the time series view for the IVP Data Display for OB8.2.

# 5.0 Verification Plot Definition Manager

The Verification Plot Definition Manager will undergo changes to account for the addition of a comparison variable and variables that can be used to breakdown statistics. The changes are as follows:

- A component to be used for specifying the comparison variable will be added. It will be similar to the component used to specify the x-axis variable.
- New list items for both the x-axis variable and comparison variable will be created. These include "Issuance Time-Of-Day" and "Forecast Type Source".

Screenshots of the OB7.2 Verification Plot Definition Manager and a prototype OB8.2 Verification Plot Definition Manager are provided in Figure 4.

#### NOAA – National Weather Service/OHD Hydrologic Deterministic Verification –User Interface Change Document

Plot Definition N	Janager, IVP v. ob7.2 05/19/06
Select Primary Statistics:	Choose Stat
Select Primary Plot Type:	SCATTER
Select Secondary Statistics:	Choose Stat
Select Secondary Plot Type:	SCATTER
Select X-Axis Variable:	Location
Analysis Interval Used: 200	3-09-01 00:00:00 GMT - 2003-10-31 23:59:59 GMT
Leadtime Interval Used: 0 h	ours - 120 hours
Select Observed Category:	Do Not Use
Select Forecast Category:	All Categories Combined 💌
Select Graph Template:	NE Select
Load From Batch	Create Plot
Plot Definition Manager,	IVP V. 008.2 10/04/06 Data Source #0
Select Primary Statistics:	Choose Stat
Select Primary Statistics: Select Primary Plot Type:	Choose Stat
Select Primary Statistics: Select Primary Plot Type: Select Secondary Statistics:	Choose Stat
Select Primary Statistics: Select Primary Plot Type: Select Secondary Statistics: Select Secondary Plot Type:	Choose Stat
Select Primary Statistics: Select Primary Plot Type: Select Secondary Statistics: Select Secondary Plot Type: Select X-Axis Variable:	Choose Stat
Select Primary Statistics: Select Primary Plot Type: Select Secondary Statistics: Select Secondary Plot Type: Select X-Axis Variable: Select Comparison Variable:	Choose Stat
Select Primary Statistics: Select Primary Plot Type: Select Secondary Statistics: Select Secondary Plot Type: Select X-Axis Variable: Select Comparison Variable: Analysis Interval Used:	Choose Stat
Select Primary Statistics: Select Primary Plot Type: Select Secondary Statistics: Select Secondary Plot Type: Select X-Axis Variable: Select Comparison Variable: Analysis Interval Used: Issuance Time Interval Use	Choose Stat
Select Primary Statistics: Select Primary Plot Type: Select Secondary Statistics: Select Secondary Plot Type: Select X-Axis Variable: Select Comparison Variable: Analysis Interval Used: Issuance Time Interval Used: Leadtime Interval Used:	Choose Stat
Select Primary Statistics: Select Primary Plot Type: Select Secondary Statistics: Select Secondary Plot Type: Select X-Axis Variable: Select Comparison Variable: Analysis Interval Used: Issuance Time Interval Used: Leadtime Interval Used:	Choose Stat
Select Primary Statistics: Select Primary Plot Type: Select Secondary Statistics: Select Secondary Plot Type: Select X-Axis Variable: Select Comparison Variable: Analysis Interval Used: Issuance Time Interval Used: Leadtime Interval Used: Select Observed Category: Select Forecast Category:	Choose Stat  SCATTER  Choose Stat  Choose Stat Choose Stat Choose Stat  Choose Stat  Choose Stat  Choose Stat
Select Primary Statistics: Select Primary Plot Type: Select Secondary Statistics: Select Secondary Plot Type: Select X-Axis Variable: Select Comparison Variable: Analysis Interval Used: Issuance Time Interval Used: Leadtime Interval Used: Select Observed Category: Select Forecast Category: Select Graph Template: NON	Choose Stat



#### 6.0 IVP Statistic Chooser Manager

The IVP Statistic Chooser Manager will undergo changes to include new statistics to be produced for OB8.2. Special plots must also be accounted for. The new statistics will be added to existing groups of statistics, where reasonable. Otherwise, new statistic groups will be created. Note that statistics are grouped together if they can be displayed against the same y-axis. Screenshots of the OB7.2 IVP Statistic Chooser Manager and a prototype OB8.2 IVP Statistic Chooser Manager are provided in Figure 6.

IVP Sta	tistic Chooser Manager, IVP v. ob7.2 (	05/19/06
Error Statistics  RMSE (RMSE)  Maximum Error (MAXERR)  Mean Abs Error (MAE)  Mean Error (ME)  Leadtime Statistics  Avg Leadtime of Detection (AVGLDTM)	Categorical Statistics PoD (POD) Hydrologic FAR (HFAR) Traditional FAR (TFAR) Over Forecast Rate (OFR) Under Forecast Rate (UFR) Crit. Succ. Index (CSI)	Quantiles and Extremes Minimum (MINIMUM) O.25 Quantile (QUAN 0.25) Media (MEDIAN) O.75 Quantile (QUAN 0.75) Maximum (MAXIMUM) Sample Size Statistic Sample Size (NUM SAMPLES)
OK IVP St	atistic Chooser Manager, IVP v. ob8.2	Cancel
Error Statistics   RMSE (RMSE)  Maximum Error (MAXERR)  Mean Abs Error (MAE)  Mean Error (ME)  Moments  Observed Mean (OBS_MEAN)	Categorical Statistics PoD (POD) Hydrologic FAR (HFAR) Traditional FAR (TFAR) Over Forecast Rate (OFR) Under Forecast Rate (UFR) Crit. Succ. Index (CSI)	Quantiles and Extremes Minimum (MINIMUM) 0.25 Quantile (QUAN 0.25) Media (MEDIAN) 0.75 Quantile (QUAN 0.75) Maximum (MAXIMUM)
Forecast Mean (FCST_MEAN)  Observed Std Dev (OBS_STDDEV)  Forecast Std Dev (FCST_STDDEV)	Gilbert Score (GILBERT)  ROC Area (ROCAREA)  Correlation, Bias, and Skill	Sample Size Statistic Sample Size (NUM SAMPLES) Special Plots
Leadtime Statistics	Pearson's Correlation (CORR) Bias (%) (BIAS) RMSE-SS, Persist. (RMSESS_PER)	CDF Plot (CDFPLOT) PDF Plot (PDFPLOT) ROC Plot (ROCPLOT)
OK		Cancel

**Figure 5:** Screenshots of the IVP Statistic Chooser Manager for OB7.2 (top) and the prototype for OB8.2 (bottom).

#### 7.0 IVP Statistic Display

The IVP Statistic Display will change appearance primarily because the chart rendering engine will be changed from JClass DesktopViews to ChartDirector. This will result in changes to the fonts, label positions, plot area position, and other aspects of the chart's appearance. Also the following changes will be made:





**Figure 6:** Screenshots of the IVP Statistic Display for OB7.2 (top) and prototype for OB8.2 (bottom).

- The NOAA logo in the upper left corner and the NWS logo in the upper right corner of the displayed chart will be removed. Instead, a NOAA water mark will be placed in the background of every chart.
- A new menu item called View Batch Tokens will be created allowing the user to view the batch program tokens used to acquire the data displayed. As stated in the design document, the IVP GUI uses tokens in order to access the IVP Batch Program software components to acquire forecast-observed pairs and compute verification statistics.

Screenshots of the OB7.2 IVP Statistic Display and a prototype OB8.2 IVP Statistic Display are provided in Figure 6.

## 8.0 IVP Batch File Creation Wizard

The IVP Batch File Save Manager will be replaced by the IVP Batch File Creation Wizard. It will be made possible for the user to create one graphic displayed in the IVP Statistic Display, and create a batch file capable of generating the same graphic for a different analysis period or for many possible combinations of locations, saving each to a different file.

The user interface will follow a generic wizard design. It will consist of a sequence of steps, each specifying different aspects of the batch file. The last step, when completed, will result in the creation of a batch file.

Screenshots of the OB7.2 IVP Batch File Save Manager and the prototype OB8.2 IVP Batch File Creation Wizard are provided in Figure 7.

		IVP Batch	h File Save Manager, IVP v. ob7.2 05/19/06
	Image Fil	e To Create:	Select
	Data File	To Create [option	nal]:
	🖲 Use De	efaults 🔾 Cr	reate New Template 🕜 Use Existing Template
	Template	File Name:	Select
	Batch Fil	è Namé:	Select
		OK	Cancel
v			IVP Batch File Creation Wizard
Overview 1. Analysis 2. Availabl 3. Define (	e Locations	Analysis Period You may change does not always	e the analysis period and interval in order to make it so that the batch file s produce results for the same period. Relative dates are recommended.
4. File Nam	ies	🖌 Use current a	analysis period:
		Analysis Peri Analysis Inte	iœd: 2003-09-01 00:00:00 - 2003-10-31 23:59:59 erval: "2weeks"
		🗌 Change analys	sis period:
		Start Time:	Fixed Rel
		End Time:	Fixed Rel
		Time Step:	0 <sup>↑</sup> NONE ▼
			Previous Next Last Einish Cancel

**Figure 7:** Screenshots of the IVP Batch File Save Manager for OB7.2 (top) and the IVP Batch File Creation Wizard for OB8.2 (bottom).

# 9.0 Vfyruninfo Editor

The Vfyruninfo Editor main window will be significantly changed to allow for greater usability and functionality. Specifically, the main window will be changed to include two tables:

- A bottom table displaying the user edited locations within the vfyruninfo table.
- A top table displaying verification locations found in the ingestfilter table that are not in the top table, and entries that were in the bottom table at some time but have been removed.

In addition to the columns of the OB7.2 Vfyruninfo Editor table, the two new tables will include new columns for the duration, extremum, active state ('Y' or 'N'), and national flag ('Y' or 'N'), as well as critical stages and flows as acquired from the rivercrit table, if appropriate. Furthermore, a location filter panel will be included at the top of the window, restricting the rows visible in the top table. Lastly, buttons will be included to allow for selecting rows from the tables, adding rows to or removing rows from the bottom table, and editing the sensor preferences, response time, active state, and national flag values of selected rows.

The Vfyruninfo Record Editor window will change to include text fields for the duration and extremum.

Screen shots of the OB7.2 Vfyruninfo Editor main window and the OB8.2 prototype are provided in Figure 8, and screenshots of the OB7.2 Vfyruninfo Record Editor and the OB8.2 prototype are provided in Figure 9.

## 10.0 IVP Batch Language

The IVP Batch Program batch language shall include the following new commands:

- ACTIVE\_STATUS: Restricts locations to only those that are active, inactive, or both (default). Used for pairing and statistics calculation.
- BREAKDOWN\_BY\_FCSTTS: Breaks down statistic computation based on the forecast type source. Used for statistics calculation.
- COMP\_VARIABLE: Specifies the comparison variable used to further break down statistics computation and produce a graphic. The values of the comparison variable are shown in the graphic legend. Used for graphics.
- DUR: Restricts locations to only those that have a specified duration code. Used for pairing and statistics calculation.
- EXTREMUM: Restricts locations to only those that have a specified extremum code. Used for pairing and statistics calculation.
- ISSUANCE\_START: The start time-of-day (0 24 hours) used to restrict the data used in computations based on the forecast basistime. Used for statistics calculation.
- ISSUANCE\_END: The end time-of-day (0 24 hours) used to restrict the data used in computations based on the forecast basistime. Used for statistics calculation.
- ISSUANCE\_STEP: The time step used to break down the issuance time-of-day interval into evenly spaced subintervals. Used for statistics calculation.
- OBS\_TYPE: Specifies from where the observation is to be drawn for constructing and using a pair: "PROCESSED" or "RAW". Used for pairing and statistic computation.

CLKW2         HG         FE,FF         Z          FAST           ELRP1         HG         FE,FF         Z          MEDIUM           MTXV2         HG         FE,FF         Z          MEDIUM           OLNNG         HG         FE,FF         Z          MEDIUM           RGLN4         HG         FE,FF         Z          MEDIUM           Delete         wiLW2         HG         FF         Z          MEDIUM           Save         Exit         Save		lid	pe	fost ts	extremums	sensor pref	resp time	Т
ELRP1       HG       FE,FF       Z        FAST         New       HNP1       HG       FE,FF       Z        MEDIUM         MTXV2       HG       FE,FF       Z        MEDIUM         OLNN6       HG       FE,FF       Z        SLOW         RCLN4       HG       FE,FF       Z        MEDIUM         Dalete       WILW2       HG       FF       Z       RG       MEDIUM         Dalete       Save        Exit		CLKW2	HG	FE, FF	Z		FAST	
JHNP1       HG       FE,FF       Z        MEDIUM         MTXV2       HG       FE,FF       Z        MEDIUM         OLINN5       HG       FE,FF       Z        MEDIUM         RGLN4       HG       FE,FF       Z        MEDIUM         Dalat       WILW2       HG       FF       Z       RG       MEDIUM         Delete       Mediate       FF       Z       RG       MEDIUM         Load       Save       F       F       Z       RG       MEDIUM		ELRP1	HG	FE, FF	Z		FAST	
MTXV2         HG         FE,FF         Z          MEDIUM           QLNN6         HG         FE,FF         Z          SLOW           RGLN4         HG         FE,FF         Z          MEDIUM           Dalete         wiLW2         HG         FF         Z         RG         MEDIUM           Dalete         ndelete          Save		JHNP1	HG	FE, FF	Z		MEDIUM	
New     OLINN6     HG     FE,FF     Z		MTXV2	HG	FE, FF	Z		MEDIUM	
RGLN4     HG     FE,FF     Z      MEDIUM       Pàit     WILW2     HG     FF     Z     RG     MEDIUM       elete     delete     Image: Save     Image: Save     Image: Save     Image: Save     Image: Save     Image: Save	New	OLNN6	HG	FE, FF	Z		SLOW	
alete WILW2 HG FF Z RG MEDIUM		RGLN4	HG	FE, FF	Z		MEDIUM	
lete elete oad ave	414	WILW2	HG	FF	Z	RG	MEDIUM	
	Load							

					1								
tions													
ilter —													
PF. ALL	. Sele	et Dur	ALL	Select Fa	ALL	Selec	t TS-	ALL	Sele	et Crit Vale	. Any	Sele	ct
•	•	Dur.	▲ ▶ □		••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••		10.	4 🕨		Chit van	· • • • •		
								Deces D	2.6.4.4	G + 2 + 4 + 2 2			
gest Fil	lter Table	Contents						Reset Fi	liter.	Select Al	i Seleo	SE ING	ne
lid		due	ovtron	aumas foot to	- oclf	60.16	modfe /f	maifalf	we 16	concor prof	roon time	oct	
RE	та	- uui	Y	FD	- 45/1	- 15/1	- Initiality	- majis/i	- 15/1	sensor prer	MEDIUM	V	N
RE	TA		N	FIL	-	_	_	_	_		MEDIUM	Y	N
RE RE	TA		X	FIL	_	_	_	_	_		MEDIUM	Y	N
RE	TA		N	F7	-	-	_	_	_		MEDIUM	Y	N
RF	TA		X	F7	-	-	-	_	-		MEDIUM	Y	N
R	TA		N	FR	-	-	_	_	_		MEDIUM	Ŷ	N
	TA		N	F7	-	-	-	-	_		MEDILIM	Ŷ	N
	TA		X		-	-	-	-	-		MEDIUM	Ŷ	N
	TA		X	FZ	-	-	-	-	-		MEDIUM	Ŷ	N
CΥ	TA	1	N	FA	-	-	-	-	-		MEDIUM	Y	N
	TA	1	X	FA	-	-	-	-	-		MEDIUM	γ	N
CΥ	11/2					_	-	_	_		MEDIUM	Y	N.
CY CY	TA	i	N	FR	-	-					MEDIUM	1.5	
CY CY CY	TA	- I	N X	FB	-	-	-	-	-		MEDIUM	Ŷ	N
		l l		FB FB	-		-	-	-		MEDIUM	Y	N
CY CY Y Choc		L Unchoo	N X 8€ ▲	FB FB Unchoos	- -		- Sensor 1	- Prefs	Resp	onse Ac	MEDIUM tive N	Y	
CY CY CY Choo cluded i	TA TA TA TA TA TA TA TA	Unchoo	N X Be	FB FB Unchoos		Save	- Sensor 1 Load	- Prefs Cı	Resp	onse Ac	tive Na	Y ation	n N na]
CY CY CY Choc cluded i	in the Vfyr	Unchoo	N X	FB FB Unchoos	se All A	Save fs/f	- Sensor 1 Load	- Prefs Cı majfs/f	Resp reate	cnae Ac	tive Na Select	Y ation	
Y Y Y Y Choc cluded i lid CMP1	TA TA TA TA TA TA TA TA TA TA TA TA TA T	Unchoo	N X se A	FB FB Unchoos	- - we λ11 ▲▲		- Sensor I Load modfs/f - 999.0	- Prefs C1 majfs/f -999.0	Resp.	Select Al	tive R	Y ation at No act	n N na]
Y Y Y Choo cluded i lid CMP1 CMP1	in the Vfyr	Unchoo	N X se A extrem Z X	FB FB TO Unchoose ums fcst ts FF	- - 3ee λ11 ▲▲ 5 as/f -999.0 -999.0		- Sensor 1 Load modfs/f -999.0	- Prefs C: majfs/f - 999.0 - 999.0	Resp.	Select Al	tive N Select resp time MEDIUM MEDIUM	Y ation ot No act Y Y	n N na]
Y Y Y Y chood chood id CMP1 NP1 NP1	in the Vfyr	Unchoo	N X se A extrem Z Z	FB FB Unchoos Turms fcst ts FF FF FE	= - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -	Save f5/f -999.0 8.0	- Sensor 1 Load modfs/f -999.0 -999.0	- Prefs C1 majfs/f -999.0 -999.0 12.0	Resp reate rs/f -999.0 11.6	Select Al	tive N Select resp time MEDIUM MEDIUM MEDIUM	Y ation ation act Y Y	
CY CY CY CY CY Chox cluded i lid CMP1 CMP1 NP1 NP1	TA TA TA TA TA TA TA TA TA TA TA TA TA T	Unchoo	N X se A extrem Z X Z Z	FB FB FB FB FC FF FF FF FF FF	= - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -	Save fs/f -999.0 8.0 8.0		- Prefs (71) - 999.0 - 999.0 12.0 12.0	Resp reate rs/f -999.0 -999.0 11.6 11.6	Select Al Sensor pref	tive N Select resp time MEDIUM MEDIUM MEDIUM	Y ation ation act Y Y Y	
CY CY CY CY Choc Cluded i lid CMP1 MP1 NP1 ROC2	TA TA TA TA TA in the Vfyr Pe HP HC HG TA	Unchoo	N X se A extrem Z X Z N	FB FB Turchoos Turchoos FF FF FF FF FF FB	- 	Save fs/f -999.0 -999.0 8.0 8.0 -	- Sensor 1 Load modfs/f -999.0 -999.0 10.0 10.0	- Prefs - - 999.0 12.0 12.0 -	reate rs/f -999.0 -999.0 11.6 11.6	Select Al Sensor pref	tive N Select resp time MEDIUM MEDIUM MEDIUM MEDIUM MEDIUM	Y ation ation act Y Y Y Y	
CY CY CY CY Choose cluded i Iid CMP1 CMP1 NP1 NP1 NP1 NP1 ROC2 ROC2	TA TA TA TA TA in the vfyr pe HP HC HG HG TA TA	Unchoo	N X 2 2 X Z X Z Z N N N	FB FB Tunchoos FF FF FF FF FB FZ	= = = = = = = = = = = = = =			- Prefs C1	Resp. reate rs/f -999.0 -999.0 11.6 11.6 	Select Al Sensor pref	tive N tive N resp time MEDIUM MEDIUM MEDIUM MEDIUM MEDIUM	Y ation ation act Y Y Y Y Y	
CY CY CY CY chock cluded i lid CMP1 .NP1 .NP1 .NP1 .NP1 .NP1 .NP1 .NP1 .N	TA TA TA TA TA TA in the Vfyr HP HP HP HG HG TA TA TA	Unchoo	N X See A C C X Z Z Z X N X X	HB FB FB FB TC FF FF FF FF FB FB FB FB FB	- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -	Save fs/f -999.0 -999.0 8.0 8.0 8.0 	- Sensor 1 Load modfs/f -999.0 -999.0 10.0 10.0 - - - -	- Prefs majfs/f -999.0 12.0 12.0 1- -	Resp reate rs/f -999.0 -999.0 11.6 11.6  -	Select Al Sensor pref	tive N Elive N resp time MEDIUM MEDIUM MEDIUM MEDIUM MEDIUM MEDIUM	Ation act No act Y Y Y Y Y Y Y	
CY CY CY CY CY Choc Choc Choc CMP1 CMP1 CMP1 CMP1 CMP1 CMP1 CMP1 CMP1	TA TA TA TA TA OBE ▼ [	Unchoo	N X se ▲ [ extrem Z X Z Z N N N X X X	HB FB To FB To FF FF FB FF FB FZ FZ FZ	= - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -		- Sensor ) Load modfs/f -999.0 -999.0 10.0 10.0 - - - -		Resp reate rs/f -999.0 11.6 - - - -	Select Al sensor pref	tive NM tive NM tive NM tive NM tive Select resp time MEDIUM MEDIUM MEDIUM MEDIUM MEDIUM MEDIUM	ation act No Act Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y	
CY CY CY CY CY Choc Cluded i lid CMP1 CMP1 CMP1 CMP1 CMP1 CMP1 CMP1 CMP1	TA TA TA TA TA TA TA TA TA TA TA TA	uinfo Table	N X Se A extrem Z X X X N N X N X N	HB FB FB FB FF FF FF FB FZ FB FZ FB	= = = = = = = = = = = = = =		- Sensor 1 Load modfs/f -999.0 -999.0 10.0 10.0 - - - - -	- Prefs majfs/f -999.0 -999.0 12.0 12.0 - - - - - -	Resp reate rs/f -999.0 -999.0 11.6 11.6 - - - -	Select Al Select Al sensor pref	tive N tive N resp time MEDIUM MEDIUM MEDIUM MEDIUM MEDIUM MEDIUM MEDIUM MEDIUM MEDIUM	Ation ation act Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y	
CY CY CY CY CY Market Choc Choc Choc Choc Choc Choc Choc Choc	TA TA TA TA TA TA TA Pe HP HP HC HG TA TA TA TA TA TA TA TA	Unchoo	N N N N N N N	HB FB FB To the hoose FF FF FF FF FF FB FZ FB FZ FB FZ FB FZ FB FZ FB	= - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -		- Sensor 1 Load modfs/f - 999.0 - 999.0 10.0 10.0  - - - - -		Resp reate rs/f -999.0 -999.0 11.6 11.6  - - -	Select Al Select Al Sensor pref	tive N tive N tive N select resp time MEDIUM MEDIUM MEDIUM MEDIUM MEDIUM MEDIUM MEDIUM MEDIUM MEDIUM	t Ation ation act Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y	
CY CY CY CY CY CY Choc CMP1 CMP1 LNP1 LNP1 LNP1 LNP1 LNP1 LNP1 CC2 ROC2 ROC2 ROC2 ROC2 ROC2 TY TY	TA TA TA TA TA TA Case ▼ [ Pe HP HP HC HG TA TA TA TA TA TA TA TA TA TA	Unchoo	N X See ▲ [ extrem Z Z Z Z N N X X X X X N N N X X X X X X	HB FB FB FB FF FF FF FF FF FB FF FB FB FZ FB FB FZ FB FB FZ FB	= = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = =	Save fs/f -999.0 -999.0 8.0 8.0 - - - - - - - -	- Sensor 1 Load Modfs/f -999.0 10.0 10.0 - - - - - - - - - - - - -		Resp. reate rs/f -999.0 11.6 11.6 - - - - - -	Select Al sensor pref	tive N tive N	Ation ation act Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y	
CY CY CY T iccluded i I InPl LNP1 LNP1 LNP1 LNP1 ROC2 ROC2 ROC2 ROC2 ROC2 ROC2 ROC2 ROC2	TA TA TA TA TA TA Cose ▼	Unchoo	N X See A extrem Z Z Z Z N N X X X X X X X X	FB FB FB FF FF FF FF FB FZ FB FZ FB FZ FB FZ FB FZ FB FZ FB	= = = = = = = = = = = = = =		- Sensor ) Load modfs/f -999.0 10.0 10.0 - - - - - - - - - - - -		Resp. reate rs/f -999.0 11.6 11.6 - - - - - - - - - - -	Select Al Select Al Sensor pref	tive N tive N	ation attion act No Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y	
CY CY CY T icluded i lid CMP1 CMP1 LNP1 LNP1 LNP1 LNP1 ROC2 ROC2 ROC2 ROC2 ROC2 TY TY TY ADM8 10000	TA TA TA TA TA TA TA Pe HP HP HC HG HG HG TA TA TA TA TA TA TA TA TA TA TA	Unchoo	N X ee A extrem Z X Z Z N N X N N X N N X N N X N N	HB FB FB FB FF FF FF FF FB FZ FB FZ FB FZ FB FZ FB FZ FB FZ FB	= = = = = = = = = = = = = =	Save f5/f -999.0 -999.0 8.0 8.0 - - - - - - - - - - - -	- Sensor 1 modfs/f -999.0 999.0 10.0 10.0 - - - - - - - - - - - - -	- C1 Prefs C1 majfs/f - 999.0 12.0 12.0 - - - - - - - - - - - - -	Resp. rs/f -999.0 -999.0 11.6 11.6 - - - - - - - - - -		tive N tive N tive N resp time MEDIUM MEDIUM MEDIUM MEDIUM MEDIUM MEDIUM MEDIUM MEDIUM MEDIUM MEDIUM MEDIUM MEDIUM	ation act No Act No Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y	

**Figure 8:** Screenshot of the Vfyruninfo Editor main window for OB7.2 (top) and prototype for OB8.2 (bottom).

	Vfyruninfo Record Editor	×)
Location	CLKW2	
PE	HG	Ì
Forecast TS List	FE,FF	
Extremum List	Z 4	
Sensor Pref List		
Response Time	FAST	
OK	Cancel	
	Vfyruninfo Record Editor	×
Location	Víyruninfo Record Editor	×
Location	Víyruninfo Record Editor	×)
Location PE Duration	Víyruninfo Record Editor	×
Location PE Duration Extremun	Víyruninfo Record Editor	×
Location PE Duration Extremum Forecast TS List	Víyruninfo Record Editor	×)
Location PE Duration Extremum Forecast TS List Sensor Pref List	Víyruninfo Record Editor	
Location PE Duration Extremum Forecast TS List Sensor Pref List Response Time	Víyruninfo Record Editor	

**Figure 9:** Screenshots of the Vfyruninfo Record Editor for OB7.2 (top) and prototype for OB8.2 (bottom).

Possible values for some existing commands will also be enhanced. For example, acceptable CALCSTATS values will include new statistics (i.e. MOMENTS for all mean and standard deviation statistics) and acceptable XAXIS\_VARIABLE values will include new variable values (for example, FCST\_TS for forecast type source and ISSTIME for issuance time).

The following commands are being removed from the batch language for OB8.2:

• OBSERVED\_TABLE: Was used in OB7.2 to specify if the observations are to be drawn from the pehpsep table of the archive database, which is a processed table. By default, observations came from the pecrsep table, which is a raw table. This batch command is being replaced by OBS\_TYPE. Whenever the OBSERVED\_TABLE value was PEHPSEP, it is replaced by an OBS\_TYPE value of PROCESSED.

# 11.0 IVP Batch Builder

Every new command given in the previous section will have an appropriate editing tool provided in the IVP Batch Builder. Software for existing tools will be reused wherever possible. No prototype is currently available.